Mid Term Dissemination Seminar

Consortium for Research on Educational Access, Transitions and Equity (CREATE)

Research Consortium on Educational Outcomes and Poverty (RECOUP)

NATIONAL SEMINAR ON EDUCATION ACCESS, EXCLUSION AND OUTCOMES

3-5 December, 2008

India Habitat Centre, New Delhi

Seminar Report

December 2008



National University of Educational Planning and Administration 17-B, Sri Aurobindo Marg, New Delhi 110016

Contents

1. Background and Purpose of the Seminar
2. Seminar Themes and Agenda
3. Participants
4. Venue and Dates
5. Inauguration
6. Papers Presented
6.1 School Quality and Participation: Exploring the Phenomenon of Silent Exclusion
by Prof. R. Govinda
6.2 Access to Teaching Learning Process in the Schools & Learner's Participation –
In Tribal District of Dindori, MP. by B.K. Panda
6.3 Exploring gender and school participation. To what extent does gender matter? by
Madhumita Bandyopadhyay4
6.4 Social Equity Issues and Participation of Children in Schooling with Special Focus
on Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes by Mona Sedwal 4
6.5 School Size and Patterns of Participation Focus On Small Schools by Rashmi
<i>Diwan</i>
6.6 Head teacher, community participations and access to schooling by Aarti
Srivastava5
6.7 Are Schools Changing? Comparing Schools and School Quality between 1990 and
2008 by Prof. R. Govinda
7. Final Agenda
8. List of Participants

1. Background and Purpose of the Seminar

A joint mid term dissemination seminar on Education Access, Exclusion and Outcomes was organized by CREATE-NUEPA and RECOUP-CORD from 3rd to 5th of December 2008. The overall purpose of this Seminar was to share the initial findings from a series of studies initiated by NUEPA and CORD to understand the issues of access to schooling and outcomes of education in India. The studies are being carried out as a collective effort under the auspices of two DFID-funded consortia – Consortium for Research in Educational Access, Transition and Equity (CREATE) and Research Consortium on Educational Outcomes and Poverty (RECOUP) – involving several partner institutions from UK, India, Bangladesh, Pakistan, Ghana, South Africa and Kenya. The two sets of studies are being carried out in India independently. However, the Seminar attempts to bring the researchers on a common platform to disseminate the findings emerging from the field studies.

Research work under **CREATE India** explores issues of access to elementary education with an expanded vision of access that includes 'meaningful learning' that is useful, sustainable and provided equitably. Access is not viewed separately from educational quality (what children have access to); and educational outcomes (what competencies and capabilities are acquired). Within this broad framework, the programme of research spread over five years focus on analysis of policy and practice designed to reduce educational exclusion and expand access to basic education for all children addressing such research questions as: Who goes to school and completes elementary education? What kind of families do they belong to? How do their social class, caste and economic background intervene? Who and why are some children continuing to be outside the schooling framework? What happens to them in the school – their participation, learning and their progression within the school as well as to higher levels? And, how are schools (and the school system) responding to the expanding enrollment and participation of children in schooling?

As part of this exercise, NUEPA has prepared a Country Analytical Review and a number of thematic review exercises are underway. The Field Studies component of the work consists of surveys of households and schools in three selected clusters of villages. The three clusters of 10-12 villages each (36 villages in all) selected for field studies are located in the states of Madhya Pradesh and Chhattisgarh, which are relatively underdeveloped – economically as well as educationally. A survey of all households (around 7000) and all schools in the selected villages has been completed. A roster of core data on participation of children has been prepared for all children in grades 1 to 8. Achievement tests have been administered to about 2000 children in grades 4 and 5. Child tracking for studying participation status will be carried out at two levels – 10 percent children identified in the household surveys; and, all children on the school roster to be tracked through school revisit and achievement tests to be administered to all grade 4 and 5 children during revisit in 2009. In addition, in-depth observational studies of selected villages/schools to be taken up in 6 villages – one high performance and one low performance in each cluster – based on the findings of the school and household survey.

The research work of **RECOUP India** intends to understand the linkages behind the inferior outcomes of education for the poor, which, in turn, play an important role in determining future incidence and extent of poverty. The education MDGs presume that completion of primary schooling by all children – along with the complementary changes implied by the other Goals – will help to halve world poverty by 2015. Many now wish to encompass secondary schooling, where measured gains in health, fertility-reduction and other desired outcomes seem even more strongly evident. An improved understanding of the relationship between educational outcomes and pro-poor development will thus be of particular interest to those working on the issues related to MDG implementation and monitoring, including UN and bilateral agencies, the World Bank, and the governments and NGOs involved in the national implementation process. In India, the research is being conducted in the states of Madhya Pradesh and Rajasthan. The research has both a qualitative and a quantitative component, whereby the outcome of each is going to inform the other. The qualitative research is being conducted in one urban and one rural site in one district of each state (a total of four sites). The methodology includes in-depth semistructured interviews with sample respondents for each project, group discussions, and visits to schools, relevant institutions, and offices.

The quantitative component comprises a survey of more than 1000 households in 18 villages and 6 towns of Madhya Pradesh and Rajasthan in the same geographical sub region of each state in which the qualitative research sites are located. A coded structured questionnaire was designed to collect data along all three RECOUP themes – socio economic details of the households as well as details on education, employment, skills acquired, health and fertility status and beliefs and perceptions of all members between 15 and 60. A panel data set was planned, so a second survey of the same households will be done after a gap of two years.

2. Seminar Themes and Agenda

The research studies shared at the Seminar were essentially work in progress and the presentation in Seminar does not cover all research questions being addressed through the two sets of studies. The themes of the papers presented include the following:

- 1. School Governance, Leadership and Community Involvement
- 2. Gender and Social Equity in School Participation
- 3. School Quality, Teachers and Teaching-learning Conditions
- 4. Social and Human Development Outcomes of Education
- 5. Economic and Labour Market Outcomes of Education
- 6. Outcomes from Partnerships in Education between Governments, Aid Agencies and Households
- 7. Assessing Change and Improvement: Revisiting Schools

3. Participants

The list of participants is attached with the report. The participants of the Seminar included education experts, government officers and representatives of different NGOs, universities, education institutions and international funding agencies. Officials from the State Governments of Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh and Chhattisgarh, where the field studies have been carried out, were also invited to take part in the deliberations of the Seminar (For details see Appendix 1).

4. Venue and Dates

The Seminar began at 9.30 am on 3rd December 2008 and ended with Lunch at 2.30 pm on 5th December 2008. The sessions were held at Silver Oak I and Jacaranda-II Halls in the India Habitat Centre, Lodhi Estate, New Delhi.

5. Inauguration

The inaugural session of the seminar was chaired by Prof. Ved Prakash, Vice Chancellor, NUEPA. The seminar started with warm welcome and introduction of the programme by Prof. R. Govinda. The Chairperson also addressed the participants and mentioned the relevance of the project like CREATE in the Indian context and his expectations from this seminar.

In the inaugural address the chief guest, Shri. A.K. Rath, Secretary of Education introduced all participants about the current situation of school education and the recent initiatives and right based approaches taken by government to realize the goals of UEE within stipulated period of time. This session, enabled the setting of objectives before the seminar.

6. Papers Presented

6.1 School Quality and Participation: Exploring the Phenomenon of Silent Exclusion by Prof. R. Govinda

The aim of the paper was to understand the process of poor quality schooling which results in children dropping out of school, eventual illiteracy and incapacity to pursue productive life in their adulthood. The interface between access and quality was explored through an empirical study of 89 schools located in three clusters of contiguously located villages- one cluster in Rajnandgaon district of Chhattisgarh and one cluster each in Rewa and Dindori districts of Madhya Pradesh.

6.2 Access to Teaching Learning Process in the Schools & Learner's Participation – In Tribal District of Dindori, MP. *by B.K. Panda*

This paper attempted to identify the core of effective learning process in schools, for which teacher is the key person taking initiative. It also aimed to understand how teachers teach and get motivated to make schools an interesting place for students. It looks at their social backgrounds, status, training and problems they face on regular basis. Through this paper, the author tried to understand the provision of adequate access to learning in the selected schools.

6.3 Exploring gender and school participation. To what extent does gender matter? *by Madhumita Bandyopadhyay*

The aim of the paper was to critically examine whether schools are inclusive enough for all children. It also examined how 'gender' determines the access and participation of children in the schools and whether any gender gap persists in access, attendance and performance of boys and girls. The author has explored the issues in two sections. In the first section she gave a brief quantitative review of the current educational situation in the area of study in terms of indicators of gender equality. The second section looked at gender equality in access to schools, attendance patterns, repetition and performance in relation with other variables like social background, school management, grade and so on.

6.4 Social Equity Issues and Participation of Children in Schooling with Special Focus on Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes *by Mona Sedwal*

This paper focused on silent exclusion, which is related to the curriculum and pedagogical issues. It also looked at literature on education of deprived groups like Scheduled Caste and Scheduled Tribe. It brought to the fore several insights on the nature of exclusion and discrimination that cannot be solved simply by providing more schools. The paper further identified the research gaps involved in the study of social equity and their participation in school.

6.5 School Size and Patterns of Participation *Focus on Small Schools by Rashmi Diwan*

The study identified small schools on the basis of three broad indicators: schools with less than three classrooms, less than 100 enrolments and less than three teachers. Based on a field study of 89 schools in the three districts: Rewa, Dindori and Rajnandgaon, 60 schools were identified as small-sized schools on the basis of two broad indicators (less than 3 teachers and less than 100 children). Drawing major information from school survey of three blocks, the paper discussed at length how small schools were disadvantaged in access to facilities and resources compared to bigger schools. The levels of participation of children in small schools give insights into their attendance, performance as per the perception of teachers, promotions and repetitions. Some vital questions for future research were also posed.

6.6 Head teacher, community participations and access to schooling *by Aarti Srivastava*

This paper explored the role of the head teachers in effective educational institutions. The key focus is to understand access to schools in terms of relational dynamics between the community and the school leadership. This is significant for policy implementation and the achievement of Education for All (EFA) and the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) concerning access.

6.7 Are Schools Changing? Comparing Schools and School Quality between 1990 and 2008 by Prof. R. Govinda

The paper aimed to study the changes in schools in the three clusters of villages after a span of 18 years. These clusters were visited previously in 1990. The changes studied were in the context of road connectivity, improved infrastructure (communication and electricity), population and adult literacy levels.

7. Final Agenda

MID-TERM DISSEMINATION SEMINAR National Seminar on Education: Access, Exclusion and Outcomes CREATE-NUEPA, RECOUP-CORD 3-5th December 2008

Venue: India Habitat Centre, Day 1 – Silver Oak I, Day 2 and 3 – Jacaranda II

3rd December 2008

0930-1000 hrs	:	Registration
1000-1115 hrs	:	Opening Session Chief Guest: Shri A. K. Rath, Secretary (SE&L), Government of India Chair: Professor Ved Prakash Vice Chancellor, NUEPA
1115-1145 hrs	:	Tea Break
		Session I Chair: Anil Bordia
1145-1315 hrs	:	Introduction to CREATE and RECOUP International - Keith Lewin and Christopher Colclough
		Indian - R. Govinda and Claire Noronha
1315-1415hrs	:	Lunch
		Session II Chair: Shantha Sinha
1415-1545 hrs	:	School Quality and Participation: Exploring the Phenomenon of Silent Exclusion - <i>R. Govinda</i>
	:	Teachers and School Participation with Special Reference to Tribal Children - <i>B.K. Panda</i> Discussant: <i>Shyam B. Menon</i>
1545-1615 hrs	:	Tea Break

		Session III Chair: Shobhita Rajagopal
1615-1745 hrs	:	The School Governance Environment in UP Some Implications for Teacher Accountability - Geeta Kingdon and Mohd Muzammil Discussant: Janaki Rajan
	:	Why Aid for Education to India? - Christopher Colclough and Anuradha De Discussant: A.K. Shiva Kumar
4 th December 2008		
		Session IV Chair: N.J. Kurian
0930 -1100 hrs	:	Variations in Labour Market Outcomes: Preliminary findings From a Household Survey - Anuradha De and Rajeev Kumar Discussant: Jeemol Unni
	:	Education, Training and Work Outcomes: Insights from Work Histories of Drivers, Tailors and Electricians - <i>Claire Noronha, Tanuka Endow and</i> <i>Aparajita Bhargarh</i> Discussant: <i>Elizabeth Hill</i>
1100-1130 hrs	:	Tea Break
		Session V Chair: Karuna Chanana
1130-1300 hrs	:	Exploring Gender and School Participation: Does Gender Really Matter? - Madhumita Bandyopadhyay
	:	Exploring Social Equity Issues in School Participation - <i>Mona Sedwal</i> Discussant: <i>N. Jayaram</i>
1300-1400 hrs	:	Lunch

		Session VI Chair: P.M. Kulkarni
1400-1545 hrs	:	Exploring the Outcomes of Schooling for Young People with Disabilities - Roger Jeffery, Nidhi Singal, Neeru Sood and Aanchal Jain Discussant: Meera Pillai
	:	 Declining Fertility Rates – The Role of Education? Sharmishtha Basu, Claire Noronha, Anuradha De and Roger Jeffery Discussant: Sreela Dasgupta
1545-1615 hrs	:	Tea Break
		Session VII Chair: A. S. Seetharamu
1615- 1745 hrs	:	School Size and Patterns of Participation: Focus on Small Schools - Rashmi Diwan
	:	 Head Teacher, Community Participation and Access to School Aarti Srivastava Discussant: John Kurien
1900 hrs	:	Dinner
5 th December 2008		Session VIII Chair: A.K. Sharma
0930-1015 hrs	:	Revisiting PROBE: Findings from a Field- Based Study on Elementary Education - Meera Samson
1015-1100 hrs	:	 Are Schools Changing? Comparing Schools and School Quality between 1990 and 2008 <i>R. Govinda</i>
1100-1130 hrs	:	Tea Break

1130-1330 hrs	:	Panel Discussion. Chair: Andre Beteille. Access, Exclusion and Outcomes Panelists: Jean Dreze Angela Little and Ratna Sudarshan
	:	Concluding Session
1330 hrs	:	Lunch

8. List of Participants

- 1. Shri. A.K. Rath Secretary (SE&L) of Education, Government of India,
- 2. Prof. Ved Prakash, Vice Chancellor, National University of Educational Planning and Administration, New Delhi.

3. Praveen Jha

Centre for Economic Studies and Planning, School of Social Sciences, Jawaharlal Nehru University, New Delhi -- 110067, INDIA. Telephone Numbers: Off: +91-11-26704449 Res: +91-11-26741918, +91-11-26741052 Fax: +91-11-26717586 E-mail: praveenjha@hotmail.com ; praveenjha2005@gmail.com ; praveen@mail.jnu.ac.in

4. Farida Khan

D-1/43, Rabindra Nagar, New Delhi-110003. 9868946414, 24636386 (R) Email: <u>khan.farida@gmail.com</u>

5. A.S.Seetharamu

No. 500, 4th Main, 4th Cross, 2nd Stage, 9th Block, BDA Layout Nagarbhavi, Bangalore – 560072. Email: <u>sitaram47@yahoo.com</u>

6. Karuna Chanana

Professor, sociology of education & gender, formerly with Jawaharlal Nehru University New Delhi, India) C-8/8256 Vasant Kunj New Delhi - 110 070 Tel: +91-11-4176 8085 Email: <u>chananak@yahoo.com</u>

7. Sharad Behar

E-4/12, Area Colony Bhopal – 462016. Tel: 09425019425 Email: <u>sharadbehar@yahoo.com</u>

8. Nandini Manjrekar

Tata Institute of Social Sciences P.O. 8313, Deonar Mumbai -400088 Tel: 022-25525000 Email: <u>nandini@tiss.edu</u> <u>nandini.manjrekar@gmail.com</u>

9. John Kurien

Centre For Learning Resources (CLR) 8 Deccan College Road Yerawada Pune - 411 006 Tel. 91-20-65004191, 91-20-26692123 Fax. 91-20-26693899 clr@vsnl.com

10. Anita Rampal

C-6, 29-31 Chhatra Marg Delhi University Delhi 110007 Email: <u>anita.rampal@gmail.com</u>

11. Michael Ward

DFID India British High Commission Qutub Institutional Area, Tara Crescent New Delhi – 110016. Tel: 26529123 Email: <u>MP-Ward@dfid.gov.uk</u>

12. Shantha Sinha

Chairperson National Commission for Protection of Child Rights Chandralok Building (5th Floor) Janpath New Delhi – 11 00 01 Tel: 23731583 Email: <u>shantha.sinha@nic.in</u>

13. P M Kulkarni

Centre for the Study of Regional Development School of Social Sciences, Jawaharlal Nehru University, New Delhi – 110067. Tel: 9891985405 Email: pmkulkarni@mail.jnu.ac.in

14. Smita

American India Foundation C-17 Green Park Extension New Delhi. 110 016. Tel: +91-11-4611-8888 Fax: +91-11-4611-8890 Email: smita@aif.org

15. Dayaram

Aga Khan Foundation Second Floor Bhagwan Dass Road New Delhi H.O. Delhi-110001 Phone: 011-23386234 Email: dayaram@akdn.org

16. Mohd. Miyan

Department of Educational Studies, Faculty of Education, Jamia Millia Islamia, New Delhi-110025 Ph. +91 (11) 26981717 Extn.- 2100 Email: <u>mm_cdol@yahoo.com</u>

17. Shobhita Rajagopal

Fellow Institute of Development Studies (IDS) 8B, Jhalana Institutional Area Post Box- 636, Jaipur- 302 004 (India) Tel: (0141) 2705726, 2706457 Fax: (0141) 2705348 Email: <u>shobhita@idsj.org</u>

18. N. Jayaram

Professor and Dean Tata Institute of Social Sciences, Deonar, Mumbai Email: <u>njayaram2@rediffmail.com</u>

19. Jean Dreze

G.B. Pant Social Science Institute, Jusi, Allahabad, 211019 Tel: 0532-2667204 jaandaraz@gmail.com

20. Anil Bordia

Chairman & Managing Trustee Foundation for Education and Development B-72, Devi Path Kanote Bagh Jaipur. Tel: 0141-2620127 <u>ddashak@gmail.com</u> <u>ddashak@dataone.in</u>

21. Shyam B. Menon

33 B, Chattra Marg University of Delhi Delhi – 110007. 9968014432 shyambmenon@gmail.com

22. Samphe Lhalungpa

Education – Chief UNICEF, 73, Lodi Estate, New Delhi-110003 9810170167, <u>slhalungpa@unicef.org</u>

23. M.S. Yadav

C-III, 3038 Vasant Kunj New Delhi – 110070 26125718 ®

24. A.B.L. Srivastava

Chief Consultant, Edcil, Technical Support Group, 10-B, IP Estate, New Delhi-2 <u>Res:</u> B-41, Sector-14, Noida-201301. (U.P.) 9810402951 resu.edcil@gmail.com, abls50@hotmail.com

25. Md. Arif

Computer Centre- DES & DP NCERT New Delhi 9810621390 arif_sadiq@hotmail.com

26. Keith Lewin

Professor of Education, Arts E E314, School of Sussex Education, University of Sussex, Sussex, UK Ph. 01273 678970, International: 44 1273 678970 Email: <u>k.m.lewin@sussex.ac.uk</u>

27. Angela Little

Professor of Education Institute of Education, University of London 36 Gordon Square, London, WC1H 0PD, UK <u>a.little@ioe.ac.uk</u>

28. Geeta Kingdon

Chair in Education and International Development Institute of Education, University of London, 20 Bedford Way, London, WC1H 0AL, UK Ph: Ph: 020 3073 8316 Email: <u>G.Kingdon@ioe.ac.uk</u>

29. Christopher Colclough

Director, Centre for Commonwealth Education, 184, Hills Road, Cambridge CB2 2PQ, UK Tel: 00 44 1223 767602 <u>c.colclough@educ.cam.ac.uk</u>

30. Jeemol Unni

Gujarat Institute of Development Research, Gota, Ahmedabad 380 060 Ph-02717-242366-68, Fax: 02717-242365 Email: jeemolunni@yahoo.co.in , jeemol_unni@yahoo.com

31. Reetika Khera

Independent Economist Email: <u>reetika.khera@gmail.com</u>

32. Kiran Bhatty

Consultant,

UNICEF, 73, Lodi Estate, New Delhi- 110003 Ph: 24690404 9810273968 Email: kiran.bhatty@gmail.com

33. Navsharan Singh

International Development Research Centre, 208, Jor Bagh, New Delhi 110003 Ph: 24619411 Email: nsingh@idrc.org.in

34. Sadhna Saxena

Central Institute of Education University of Delhi Delhi. Email: sadhna_saxena@rediffmail.com

35. Nargis Panchapakesan

CIE, Delhi University Delhi Email: panchu@bol.net.in

36. Geetha B. Nambissan

Sociology of Education, Zakir Husain Centre for Educational Studies, Jawaharlal Nehru University, New Delhi- 67 Ph: 9810844575 Email: geethadelhi@eth.net

37. Elizabeth Hill

Department of Political Economy, Faculty of Arts University of Sydney, Australia Ph. 61 2 93516616, Fax: 61 2 93518596 Email: <u>e.hill@usyd.edu.au</u>

38. Tanuka Endow

Independent Economist 2501, ATS Greens 2, Sector 50, NOIDA 201307 Email: <u>tanukano1@yahoo.com</u>

39. A K Shiva Kumar

UNICEF, 73, Lodi Estate, New Delhi 110003 24690404, ext. 117 Email: <u>akshivakumar@gmail.com</u>, <u>forshiv@yahoo.com</u>

40. Sreela Dasgupta

Population and Reproductive Health Specialist ARO, ICRW, C – 139 Defence Colony, New Delhi – 110024, India Phone: 91-11-2465-4216, Fax: 91-11-2463-5142 Email: <u>sdasgupta@icrw.org</u>

41. Meera Pillai

Senior Consultant Institute of Social Studies Trust N-601, Manipal Centre 47 Dickenson Road Bangalore 560042 Ph: 91-80-25583701, Fax-91-8025583704 Mobile: 9448841811 Email: mpillai65@yahoo.com , publications.isst@spectranet.com

42. Anita Ghai

Reader, Psychology Department, Jesus and Mary College, University of Delhi Chanakyapuri Delhi. Email: <u>anitaghai@vsnl.com</u>, <u>anita.satyapal@gmail.com</u>

43. Mona Sedwal

Department of Elementary Education Institute of Home Economics University of Delhi Email: <u>monased@gmail.com</u>

44. Huma Masood

UNESCO B 5/29, Safdarjung Enclave New Delhi – 110029 26713000 Email: c.barbieri@unesco.org

45. Shanti Jagannathan

Team Leader, Education European Union Delegation of the EC to India, Nepal and Bhutan 65 Golf Links New Delhi – 110 003 Tel : 011 – 4629237 / 38 Fax : 011 - 4629206

Email: shanti.jagannathan@cec.eu.int

46. Ratna M. Sudarshan

Director Institute of Social Studies Trust India Habitat Centre, UG Floor Core 6A, Lodhi Road New Delhi-110003 Tel- 91-11-24647873, 24653780 Fax- 91-1124648724 Email-<u>ratna@isst-india.org</u>

47. N. J. Kurian

Visiting Professor Council for Social Development Sangha Rachna, 53, Lodi Estate New Delhi - 110003. Phones: 91-11-24615383, 24611700, 24616061, 24693065, 24692655 Fax: 91-11-24616061 Email: njkurian@yahoo.com

48. A.K.Sharma

(Former Director- NCERT) C-3, Sector-48 Noida-201304 9810195863

49. Sveta Dave Chakravarty

Consultant in Education Development Email: svetadave@gmail.com

50. Kokila Gulati/ F.A. Jami

Programme Director Girls' Education Programme CARE India New Delhi

51. Anuradha Sen

52. Alok Sharma

Assistant Professor (SIEMAT) SCERT Chattisgarh, Raipur 0771-2443596, 2443297, <u>scert_raipur@yahoo.com</u> **53. Susan Champagne** Independent Educationist

54. Ajai Chaube

- **55. Andre Betellie** 69, Jor Bagh New Delhi
- 56. Jason Pennelles
- 57. Swati Narayan
- 58. Neeru Bala
- 59. Rashi Bhargava
- 60. Anupam Pachauri
- **61. Madhavi Kotwal Samson** World Education
- **62. Manjir Ghosh** World Education

63. Shalini

- 64. Neha Vakil
- **65. Prabhakar** American India Foundation

66. Jyotsna Singh

- 67. Prof. CPS Chauhan
- **68. Yuko** University of Sussex
- 69. G. Arunima Women's Studies, JNU

70. G. Allean Siddh

71. Arun J. Mulla ACDS, Arunachal Pradesh

72. Monika Nayar

73. Dr. Mahesh

State Government

74. Shri M.M. Upadhyay/ Ramesh Patoda Principal Secretary – School Education Government of Madhya Pradesh Mantralaya, Vallabh Bhawan Bhopal – 462 004

NUEPA

75. R. Govinda Department of School & Non Formal Education Phone: 26510135 Email: aargovinda@gmail.com

76. Sudesh Mukhopadhyay

77. Jandhyala B. G. Tilak

78. Arun C. Mehta

79. Nalini Juneja

80. Neelam Sood

81. A. K. Singh

82. Rashmi Diwan

83. B. K. Panda

84. A. N. Reddy

85. Prof. S. R. Mahapatra

86. Madhumita Bandyopadhyay

87. Aarti Srivastava

88. Vandana Barik

- 89. Reeta Rajasekhar
- 90. Pabitra Nayak
- 91. Bakhtiyar Ahmed
- 92. Harish Chandra Behera
- 93. Imtiaz Ansari
- 94. Diptanshu Pati
- 95. Md. Mainuddin
- 96. Banishree Das
- 97. Prof. Sudha Gopalkrishnan

<u>CORD</u>

- 98. Anuradha De
- 99. Claire Noronha
- 100. Meera Samson
- 101. Anomita Goswami
- 102. Neeru Sood
- 103. Rajeev Kumar
- 104. Sanjeev Kumar
- 105. Gargi Aleaz
- 106. Samuel L. Chuaungo
- 107. Reema Govil
- 108. Aparajita Bhargarh
- 109. Pranjli Dev
- 110. Sandeep Rai

111. Sourinder Mohan Ghosh